
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA PAPERS FOR 
 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Date: Monday, 6 February 2023 
 

Time:  5.00 p.m. 
 

Place:  Committee Rooms 2 and 3, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford, 
M32 0TH 

 
 

A G E N D A   PART I Pages  

 

1.  ATTENDANCES   

 

To note attendances, including Officers and any apologies for absence. 
 

 

2.  CONFIRMATION OF ARRANGEMENTS FOR PLACE BASED 
LEADERSHIP IN TRAFFORD AND THE RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF THE 
DIRECTOR OF HR ROLE   

 
To consider a report of the Chief Executive. 

 

1 - 10 

3.  DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH RECRUITMENT   

 

To consider a report of the Interim Director of Human Resources. 
 

11 - 14 

4.  URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)   

 
Any other item or items which, by reason of special circumstances (to be 

specified), the Chairman of the meeting is of the opinion should be 
considered at this meeting as a matter of urgency. 
 

 

 
 
SARA TODD 

Chief Executive 
 

 
 

 

Public Document Pack



Employment Committee - Monday, 6 February 2023 

   
 

 

Membership of the Committee 

 
Councillors J. Bennett (Chair), A.M. Whyte (Vice-Chair), D. Acton, R. Duncan, 

S. G. Ennis, M. Freeman, F. Hornby and D.C. O'Sullivan. 
 
Further Information 

For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact: 
 

Alexander Murray, Governance Officer 
Tel: 0161 912 4250 
Email: alexander.murray@trafford.gov.uk  

 
This agenda was issued on Friday, 27 January 2023 by the Legal and Democratic 

Services Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall; Talbot Road, Stretford, 
Manchester, M32 0TH.  
 

WEBCASTING 
  

This meeting will be filmed for live and / or subsequent broadcast on the Council’s 
YouTube channel https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg 
The whole of the meeting will be filmed, except where there are confidential or exempt 

items. 
 
If you make a representation to the meeting you will be deemed to have consented to 

being filmed. By entering the body of the Committee Room you are also consenting to 
being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for 

webcasting and/or training purposes. If you do not wish to have your image captured or 
if you have any queries regarding webcasting of meetings, please contact the 
Democratic Services Officer on the above contact number or email 

democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk  
 

Members of the public may also film or record this meeting. Any person wishing to 
photograph, film or audio-record a public meeting is requested to inform Democratic 
Services in order that necessary arrangements can be made for the meeting. Please 

contact the Democratic Services Officer 48 hours in advance of the meeting if you 
intend to do this or have any other queries. 

 

mailto:democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk


1 
 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 
Report to:   Employment Committee 
Date:    6th February 2023 

Report for:    Information  
Report of:  Chief Executive 

  
Report Title 
 

Confirmation of arrangements for Place Based Leadership in Trafford and the 
re-establishment of the Director of Human Resources role. 

 

Summary 
 

Following the formalisation of the holding position of the Trafford Locality 
leadership arrangements at the Trafford Locality Board in December 2022, this 
report confirms the Chief Executive in the Place Lead and the associated 

supporting structural arrangements.   
 

This report informs the Employment Committee of a decision to re-establish the 
role of Director of Human Resources.  

 

 
 

Recommendations 
 

That Employment Committee: -  

1. Notes the confirmation of the Chief Executive in the Place Lead role at Trafford 
Locality Board in December 2022 and formalisation of the Deputy Chief 
Executive role. 

 
2. Notes the Strategy and Resources functional portfolio as outlined in the structure 

chart attached at Appendix 1. 
 

3. Notes the decision to re-establish the Director of Human Resources post on the 
council Director scale SM3, £92,007 attached at Appendix 2, note the role profile 

for the post and the intention to recruit to the post on a permanent basis. 
 

 

Relationship Corporate Priorities The proposed changes will strengthen the 

Corporate Leadership team and Strategy and 
Resources directorate and enable us to fully 

support delivery of services and achievement of 
Corporate Priorities. 

Relationship to GM Policy or 
Strategy Framework 

The roles will support alignment of Trafford 
priorities with GM polices and strategy framework.  

Financial  This proposal is fully funded. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

Legal Implications: Under the constitution there is a requirement for a 
nominated individual to undertake Head of Paid 
Service responsibilities in the absence of the Chief 

Executive and this is addressed in the report 
through the confirmation of the Deputy Chief 

Executive post. 

Equality/Diversity Implications We continuously strive to be an inclusive Employer 
and are committed to creating an environment that 

values and respects the diversity and richness that 
differences bring and both posts are pivotal to 
leading our ambitions and enable access to quality 

learning, training and jobs for all residents. 

Sustainability Implications None 

Staffing/E-Government/Asset 
Management Implications 

Impacts on Corporate Director portfolio and 
changes to reporting lines.  

Risk Management Implications   The appointment of a permanent Director of 

Human Resources role will ensure all employment 
related risk is managed and mitigated effectively.  

Carbon Reduction We aim to reduce our carbon footprint and costs 

through investing and championing our digital 
capabilities to reform how we deliver core services. 

Health and Safety Implications Responsibility for health, safety and wellbeing sits 
with the Director of Human Resources and in the 

Strategy and Resources directorate portfolio and is 
of paramount importance both from a people safety 

and well-being and compliance perspective.  

 
1. Background  

1.1 In June 2021, the Chief Executive used her constitutional right to appoint a 

Deputy Chief Executive from within the Corporate Leadership Team to act as 

the Head of Paid Service in a period of planned absence and the Corporate 

Director of Strategy and Resources was appointed into this role. 

1.2 Backfill arrangements were put in place to support the Corporate Director of 

Strategy and Resources to take on the additional responsibilities of the 

Deputy Chief Executive including the re-establishment of the Director of 

Human Resources post on an interim basis. 

1.3 In May 2022, following the establishment of Integrated Care Systems in each 

locality under the provisions of the Health and Care Bill 2021, reports to 

Employment Committee and Council outlined the intention for the Chief 

Executive to assume the Trafford Place Lead for Health and Care (“Place 

Lead”), to drive the local integration of health and social care. 

1.4 These reports also clarified the intention for the continuation of the Deputy 

Chief Executive role, to provide additional senior level support as a 

consequence of the Chief Executive taking on the additional responsibilities of 

the Place Lead. 

Page 2



3 
 

1.5 The Place Lead arrangements were put in place as a ‘holding position’ while 

the governance arrangements for integrating health and care continued to 

evolve and be clarified and proposed that they be reconsidered at the Trafford 

Locality Board in December 2022. 

1.6 This report confirms: 

 that the Place Lead arrangements were considered and formalised at the 

Trafford Locality Board in December 2022; 

 outlines further related changes to the Strategy and Resources directorate 

portfolio;  and  

 the decision to re-establish the Director of Human Resources post with the 

intention of appointing permanently to post in order to provide sufficient 

leadership capacity to deliver our corporate priorities and ambitions.   

2.0 Strategy and Resources directorate  

2.1 The Strategy and Resources directorate is a diverse directorate that provides 

a range of professional services internally and externally direct to residents, 

its functions are captured in the high-level structure chart attached in 

Appendix 1. 

2.2 The Deputy Chief Executive has a span of control for six services and 

changes are now required to support her and put in place a more robust set of 

arrangements on a permanent basis. 

Human Resources portfolio  

2.3 The Council’s Director of Human Resources post has been vacant since July 

2018, when the prevailing post holder was promoted internally to a Corporate 

Director role and the responsibilities of the former role were absorbed into 

new corporate leadership arrangements put into place at that time.  

2.4 In the former portfolio in 2018 were the following services – Human 

Resources, Communications and Marketing, GMSS, Operational Services for 

Education, Bereavement Services, Music Service and Leadership Support. 

2.5 In June 2021, the Council’s Head of Workforce and Core Strategy assumed 

the responsibilities of the former Director of Human Resources role except for 

the Communications and Marketing service and retained their substantive role 

responsibilities, as the Corporate Director of Strategy and Resources 

assumed the Deputy Chief Executive role. 

2.6 These interim arrangements are still in place, and in accordance with 

constitutional delegations, prior approval of the Chief Executive and in 

consultation with the Executive, the Corporate Director of Strategy and 

Resources has determined that the Director of Human Resources post should 

be re-established and seek to appoint to the role on a permanent basis to 

Page 3



4 
 

ensure that the Council has the capacity and oversight needed to address 

business critical workforce related issues now and in the future.  

2.7 These include a challenging programme of modernisation and reform across 

the council and adoption of new technologies that will change the way 

services are delivered, putting people at the heart of these plans and 

attracting and developing the skills we need to support us to achieve our 

corporate ambitions to reduce health inequalities, support people out of 

poverty and address our climate challenges.  

2.8 The salary level for the Director of Human Resources post shall be grade 

SM3 A which is consistent with Director roles in the authority. It should be 

noted that the establishment of the post on a permanent basis will be 

achieved on a cost neutral basis within the financial envelope for the Strategy 

and Resources Directorate. 

2.9 The proposed Director of Human Resources role profile is attached at 

Appendix 2 and recruitment to the role will be in accordance with the 

requirements as detailed in the council’s constitution. 

3.0 Budget 

 
3.1 The Director of Finance and Systems has confirmed that budget for the 

Director of Human Resources post of £122,700 will be financed from the 

Strategy & Resources directorate budget. 

 
4.0 Recommendations 

 

That Employment Committee: -  
 

1. Notes the confirmation of the Chief Executive in the Place Lead role at 

Trafford Locality Board in December 2022 and formalisation of the Deputy 
Chief Executive role. 

 
2. Notes the Strategy and Resources functional portfolio as outlined in the 

structure chart attached at Appendix 1. 

 
3. Notes the decision to re-establish the Director of Human Resources post 

on the council Director scale SM3, £92,007 attached at Appendix 2, note 

the role profile for the post and the intention to recruit to the post on a 

permanent basis. 

 
 

 

 

Page 4



5 
 

 
Appendix 1  

2

Page 5



6 
 

Appendix 2 

 

Service:  Strategy and Resources   

Band:    SM3A 
Reporting to: Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director Strategy & Resources    

Responsible for:   HR and OD, GMSS, Health & Safety, Leadership Support 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Director of Human Resources          Role Profile 

 

Our Culture 

Trafford is a great place to live, work, learn and visit. From its leafy 
suburbs, to its more urban areas, the borough takes pride in its strong, 
diverse communities, its cultural and sporting heritage and its position at 
the heart of the region’s economic powerhouse. 

Trafford Council and its partners in the public, private and third sectors 
have a Vision which sees us working together to close inequality gaps and 
maximise Trafford’s huge potential.  

Our vision: Trafford – where all our residents, businesses and 
communities prosper 

At the heart of our vision is a common cause – we want to make Trafford a 
better borough. We want to make it a place where everyone has a chance 
to succeed and where everybody has a voice. Through our new vision, we 
are making a commitment to work together across different services and 
agencies to make the best use of our resources. 

 

Trafford Council employs around 2300 non-school members of staff and 
as one of the biggest employers in the borough, we work hard to make 
Trafford Council an employer of choice. We care what you think and 
believe you are more than just a job role.  We have a great benefits’ 
package and a real focus on your health and wellbeing, as well as, 
extensive learning, succession and development opportunities. 

For us, it’s not just about what we achieve as an organisation, but how 
we do it. Therefore, all employees are expected to display our EPIC 
values.  

 

 

About Us 

At Trafford Council we are EPIC 

We EMPOWER – We inspire and trust our people to deliver the best 

outcomes for our customers, communities and colleagues. 

We are PEOPLE CENTRED – We value all people, within and external to 

the organisation and give those around us respect. We will act with 
honesty and integrity in all that we do, and create an environment that 
enables everyone we work with to thrive and succeed. 

We are INCLUSIVE – We are committed to creating an environment that 

values and respects the diversity and richness differences bring. 

We COLLABORATE – We build relationships, collaborate; treat people as 
equal partners and work together to make things happen. 

P
age 6



7 
 

 

This Role Profile outlines the key tasks you will be expected to perform to give you an understanding of a typical  day and the key activities that you will 

be expected to deliver or contribute to the delivery of. 

The ‘About You’ section explores what qualifications, experience, skills and knowledge you will need for the role.  

We are a values-based organisation and you will need to reflect our values, as well as the requirements in ‘About You’ in your application.  

Overview 

The Director of Human Resources is responsible for the delivery of safe, efficient and customer focussed Human Resources services for the council and 

for enabling a culture whereby all colleagues feel able to bring their best self to work. It has management responsibilities for the Human Resources 

function, including Greater Manchester Shared Service with GMP, health and safety, organisational & learning and development, HR strategy and 

operations and has a dotted line for people management for Operational Services for Education, the Music Service and Bereavement Services. Reporting 

to the Deputy Chief Executive and Corporate Director Strategy and Resources, it is a key leadership role in the Strategy & Resources directorate 

management team. 

Your Main Priorities 

 As a senior leader and advisor to the Corporate Leadership Team, to role model the Council’s values and behaviours, and ensure staff have clear 
objectives and work priorities in line with the Council constitution and financial procedure rules and standing orders, compliance, and best 
professional practice. 

 Provide clear and timely strategic advice, guidance and support to Members and the Corporate Leadership Team and to actively contribute to 
strategic, corporate, and service policy and decision making 

 To act as an ambassador for Trafford Council, promoting and developing the Council’s reputation, forming robust strategic all iances, and developing 
effective working relations with partners, other relevant organisations and stakeholders, Government departments and agencies. 

 To play a full part in the management and leadership of the Strategy & Resources Directorate, including the development and delivery of plans, 
strategies, resources, and service reviews. 

 To lead and direct allocated services and staff, ensuring they deliver agreed outcomes on time, within budget and meet the Council’s objectives.  

About the Role 

P
age 7



8 
 

 With the Directorate Management Team, ensure that the requirements for the development, monitoring and updating of appropriate Directorate 
and Service plans are delivered on time and within budget.  

Key duties 
 

Service Management 

 To provide confident service leadership and a clear sense of direction and purpose that enables the Directorate to contribute to the vision, values, 

policies, and priorities of Trafford Council 

 To lead, inspire and manage allocated staff and ensure teams and individuals deliver customer focused strategies, plans and s ervices.  

 Provide regular service updates to the Deputy Chief Executive & Corporate Director on budget, human resources, modernisation and performance in 

line with agreed timescales and ensure that opportunities for continuous improvement are identified.  

 To develop service policies, plans and budgets and implement within the framework of agreed priorities for the Council.  

 Through personal example, open commitment and clear action, ensure diversity is positively valued, resulting in equal access and treatment in 

employment, service delivery and external communication. 

 To ensure proper service governance and compliance with the Council’s agreed standards, policies, procedures and all relevant regulations and 

legislation are observed and adhered to. 

Specific Service Responsibilities 

 To act as principal adviser to the Council on all human resource matters.  

 To support the delivery of council corporate objectives by ensuring the development and delivery of a People Strategy that set out our ambitions for 

effective people management. 

P
age 8



9 
 

 To develop, deliver and embed effective employment strategies to achieve our equality strategy priorities for inclusive leadership and increase 

opportunities for achieving a diverse workforce within the Council that is representative of our communities.  

 To ensure the provision of flexible, customer focussed, efficient and cost-effective services that meet council priorities. 

 To establish and maintain effective working relationships and partnerships with key stakeholders on service area related issues.  

 To effectively monitor and manage allocated budgets in accordance with the Council’s Financial Regulations 

 

 

Qualifications and Professional Development 

 Relevant management and/or professional qualification  
 Chartered membership of the CIPD 

 Evidence of continued professional, managerial, and personal development. 

Experience and Knowledge 

 Evidence of promoting diversity and creating equality in service delivery and employment. 
 A proven track record of leading, motivating staff teams and of developing a culture that has achieved a high level of performance and continuous 

service improvement. 
 A successful track record of leading and managing change within a large organisation.  

 Experience of successfully developing and implementing People strategies, policies and plans  
 Strong awareness of the current issues facing local government and the wider public sector. 
 Excellent knowledge and understanding of good human resource practice, employment law and the key issues relevant to effective human resource 

management.  
 Extensive experience of working strategically in partnership with a variety of agencies and stakeholders to deliver improved outcomes. 

 Evidence of successful resource and financial management and applying rigorous monitoring and control procedures.  
 

About You 

P
age 9



10 
 

Skills and abilities 

 Strong leadership skills 
 High degree of political sensitivity and awareness.  

 Excellent influencing and negotiation skills  
 Effective communication and interpersonal skills and the ability to adapt personal style to meet the needs of the audience.  

 Ability to analyse complex issues and adopt a creative approach to problem solving and service delivery in challenging circumstances and with 
competing priorities. 

 Ability to explore innovative and creative means of delivering improved service outcomes, through effective resource utilisation, whilst minimising 
risk and maintaining a focus on delivering business as usual 

 A broad understanding of the value and use of digital technologies in improving services, and modernising working processes.  

 Working collaboratively with partners to achieve mutually beneficial outcomes. 

Special Conditions  

Enhanced DBS and vetting required  

 
 

 

P
age 10



1 
 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 
Report to:   Employment Committee 
Date:    6th February 2023 

Report for:    Information  
Report of:  Interim Director of Human Resources  

  
Report Title 
 

Director of Public Health recruitment 

 
Summary 

 

As the current postholder has indicated her intention to retire this year, a pay 

benchmarking exercise for salary levels of Directors of Public Health was 
undertaken with local authorities across Greater Manchester that informs the 
recommendations of this report. 

 
 

Recommendations 
 

1. To note the uplift of the salary for the Director of Public Health post, up 

to £105,000, in recognition of pay comparisons across Greater 

Manchester; and 

2. To note the recruitment arrangements in progress with the Faculty of 

Public Health. 

 

 

Relationship to Corporate Priorities The proposed uplift to salary will strengthen the 
opportunity to attract and retain a suitably qualified 
and experienced practitioner to fulfil the statutory 

role and support delivery of the Council’s 
Corporate Priorities and the Trafford Locality plan. 

Relationship to GM Policy or 

Strategy Framework 

The role will support alignment of Trafford locality 

priorities and NHS GM integrated care strategies. 

Financial  This proposal is fully funded. 

Legal Implications The proposal will ensure that the Council meets its 
statutory requirements to appoint to a Director of 

Public Health role. 

Equality/Diversity Implications We continuously strive to be inclusive and are 
committed to creating an environment that values 
and respects the diversity and richness that 

differences bring. The role has a key part in the 
delivery of our equality strategy ambitions. 

Sustainability Implications The role plays an important part in both climate 

change and health inequalities recognising that 
they are complex issues requiring concerted 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

action and bravery if we are to make the changes 
that will reduce the risks each poses. 

Carbon Reduction This role plays a key role in supporting us to meet 

measures to address our climate emergency.  

Staffing/E-Government/Asset 
Management Implications 

The Director of Public Health will assume all 
people responsibilities and accountability for 
systems and assets within scope of the role. 

Risk Management Implications   The Director of Public Health role will ensure all 

health-related risk is managed and mitigated 
effectively. 

Health and Safety Implications Will drive improvements to health and well-being 

of residents and services that people need and 
that they are accessible, supporting mitigation of 

risks to the health and safety of all. 

 
1. Background 

1.1 The Director of Public Health is a chief statutory officer, a status defined by 

section 2(6)(zb) of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, inserted by 

Schedule 5 of the Health and Social Care Act 2012.  

1.2 The post is responsible for ensuring that public health is at the heart of our 

council priorities and using evidential data, in collaboration with system 

leaders it determines and delivers on the aims and objectives for public health 

in the locality.  

1.3 In July 2019, as part of a wider suite of committee reports on changes to 

senior leadership arrangements, a revised salary package for the Director of 

Public Health post at £95,000 was approved based upon benchmark 

comparison of posts at this time and reporting into the Corporate Director for 

Adults and Well-being. 

1.4 The current postholder has indicated her intention to retire in May this year 

and so a further salary benchmarking exercise was undertaken with our 

statistical neighbours across Greater Manchester to determine what the 

current salaries for these roles are now.  

1.5 We would also want to acknowledge in this report the important leadership 

provided by the Eleanor Roaf in navigating us successfully through the 

challenges faced in the recent Covid 19 pandemic, leading the Trafford 

response and recovery programme and her role in advising and guiding us on 

all aspects of our ambitions to improve population health and our drive to 

address health inequalities. 

2.0 Salary benchmarking 

2.1 The current pay information for Directors of Public Health is attached at the 

end of this report in Appendix 1 and it shows that from the 10 local authorities 

surveyed in Greater Manchester, we are the lowest in terms of remuneration 

level for this post. 

Page 12



3 
 

2.2 This data suggests that to be competitive and reflect the required salary for 

this role, we will now need to offer an enhanced rate.  

2.3 In accordance with constitutional delegations, and with the prior approval of 

the Chief Executive and in consultation with the Executive, the Corporate 

Director of Strategy and Resources has determined that the salary of the post 

shall be increased up to £105,000 to attract and retain an experienced and 

qualified practitioner to take on the role in Trafford.  

2.4 The increased remuneration also reflects the significant importance placed on 

the role requirements, as a statutory chief officer, an independent advocate 

for the health of the Trafford population and specialist advisor to elected 

members and senior officers. 

3.0 Recruitment process  

3.1 The Public Health England position for recruitment to a Director of Public 

Health role is that an external process is required and we are working closely 

with the Faculty of Public Health to put an assessment process in place. 

3.2 We have secured the Regional Director of Public Health NHS NW Office for 

Health Improvement and Disparities, Dr Andrew Furber, as the appointment 

will require ratification by the Secretary of State and this is delegated to him to 

act on their behalf. 

3.0 Budget 

 
3.1 The Director of Finance and Systems has confirmed that budget for the post 

of £141,000 including on costs will be financed from Adults directorate budget. 

 
4.0 Recommendations 

 

1. To note the uplift of the salary for the Director of Public Health post, up to 
£105,000, in recognition of pay comparisons across Greater Manchester; and 

2. To note the recruitment arrangements in progress with the Faculty of Public 

Health. 
 

Appendix 1   Current salaries for Director of Public Health across GM 

 
Local Authority DPH Salary 

£ 
Notes 

1. Bolton 112,611 - 123,679  

2. Manchester  101,996 - 112,411  

3. Salford 95,787- 111,432 
 
 

 

proposed salary 
range from 1.4.23 is 
£100,000 to 

£112,000 - to be 
agreed Feb 

4. Wigan 110,430  

Page 13



4 
 

5. Bury 100,258 - 108,827  

6. Stockport 107,500  

7. Rochdale (87,830 - 99,077) 
104,441  

Postholder on top of 
scale with market 

supplement of £5364 

8. Oldham 95,000-100,000 
98,350 

 

9. Tameside 98,350  

10. Trafford current 

salary level  

95,000 

 
 

Postholder on 

£101,001 following 
inflation increases 
and based on 

working pattern 

 

Page 14


	Agenda
	2 CONFIRMATION OF ARRANGEMENTS FOR PLACE BASED LEADERSHIP IN TRAFFORD AND THE RE-ESTABLISHMENT OF THE DIRECTOR OF HR ROLE
	3 DIRECTOR OF PUBLIC HEALTH RECRUITMENT

